UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF WISCONSIN
MILWAUKEE DIVISION
JENNIFER GAJEWSKI, Individually and on Case No.: 18-cv-191
Behalf of All Others Similarly Situated, CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
Plaintiff,
VS.

)
)
)
)
g
) Jury Trial Demanded
NATIONWIDE CREDIT INC. and CHASE g
)
)
)

BANK USAN.A,,
Defendants.
INTRODUCTION
1. This class action seeks redress for collection practices that violate the Fair Debt

Collection Practices Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1692 et seq. (the “FDCPA”) and Wisconsin Consumer Act,
Ch. 421-427, Wis. Stats. (“WCA”).

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

2. The court has jurisdiction to grant the relief sought by the Plaintiff pursuant to 15
U.S.C. § 1692k and 28 U.S.C. 88 1331, 1337, and 1367. Venue in this District is proper in that
Defendant directed its collection efforts into the District.

PARTIES

3. Plaintiff Jennifer Gajewski is an individual who resides in the Eastern District of
Wisconsin (Milwaukee County).

4. Plaintiff is a “consumer” as defined in the FDCPA, 15 U.S.C. § 1692a(3), in that
Defendants sought to collect from Plaintiff a debt allegedly incurred for personal, family or

household purposes, namely a personal credit card account.
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5. Plaintiff is also a “customer” as defined in the WCA, Wis. Stat. § 421.301(17), in
that the alleged debt Defendants sought to collect from Plaintiff was incurred as a result of a
consumer transaction.

6. Defendant Nationwide Credit, Inc. (“NCI”) is a foreign business corporation with
its principal place of business located at 1000 Abernathy Road, Suite 200, Atlanta, Georgia
30328.

7. NCI does substantial business in Wisconsin.

8. NCI is engaged in the business of a collection agency, using the mails and
telephone to collect consumer debts originally owed to others.

9. NCI is engaged in the business of collecting debts owed to others and incurred for
personal, family or household purposes. It is a debt collector as defined in 15 U.S.C. 8 1692a and
Wis. Stat § 427.103(3).

10.  Defendant Chase Bank USA, N.A., (hereinafter “Chase™) is a national banking
association with its primary place of business located at 200 White Clay Center Drive, Newark,
Delaware 19711.

11.  Chase does substantial business in Wisconsin.

12.  Chase issues and services “Amazon” and numerous other brand credit cards
around the world, including in Wisconsin.

13.  Chase is a debt collector under Wisconsin law.

14.  Wis. Stat. § 427.103(3) defines debt collector as: “any person engaging, directly
or indirectly, in debt collection, and includes any person who sells, or offers to sell, forms
represented to be a collection system, device or scheme, intended or calculated to be used to
collect claims. The term does not include a printing company engaging in the printing and sale of

forms.” (emphasis added).
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15.  Wis. Stat § 427.103(2) states: “Debt collection” means any action, conduct or
practice of soliciting claims for collection or in the collection of claims owed or due or alleged to
be owed or due a merchant by a customer.”

16. Chase is a “debt collector” under Wisconsin law, in that it collects consumer debts
owed to itself, both directly and indirectly through collection agencies.

17. Chase is a “merchant” as defined in the WCA, as the alleged debt arose from use
of Plaintiff’s consumer credit account. Wis. Stat. § 421.301(25) (“The term [merchant] includes
but is not limited to a seller, lessor, manufacturer, creditor, arranger of credit and any assignee of
or successor to such person.”)

18. The Western District of Wisconsin has noted: “Unlike the FDCPA, the Wisconsin
Consumer Act does not provide exceptions to its general definition of a debt collector.”
Hartman v. Meridian Fin. Servs., 191 F. Supp. 2d 1031, 1048 (W.D. Wis. 2002).

19.  The Wisconsin Department of Financial Institutions has likewise designated

merchants and creditors as “Debt Collectors” under the WCA:;

Anyone attempting to collect a debt arising from a consumer credit transaction in
Wisconsin, whether a merchant doing its own debt collecting or a third-party debt
collector, must follow Wisconsin’s debt collection law, Ch. 427, Wis. Stats. This
IS an important point because many merchants collecting debt owed directly to
them mistakenly believe that they are exempt from Wisconsin’s debt collection
law because they are not included within the definition of “debt collector” under
the federal Fair Debt Collection Practices Act.

https://www.wdfi.org/wca/business quidance/creditors/debt collection/.

20.  Chase uses third-party debt collection agencies, including NCI, to collect
consumer debts. Chase, directly or indirectly, is a “debt collector” under this arrangement. Wis.
Stat. § 427.103(3).

21. A company meeting the definition of a “debt collector” (here, Chase) is

vicariously liable for the actions of a second company collecting debts on its behalf. Janetos v.
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Fulton Friedman & Gullace, LLP, 825 F.3d 317, 325-26 (7th Cir. 2016) (assignees who are
“debt collectors” are responsible for the actions of those collecting on their behalf).
FACTS

22.  On or about March 3, 2017, Chase mailed an account statement to Plaintiff
regarding an alleged debt, allegedly owed to Chase and associated with Plaintiff’s “Amazon”
credit card account with an account number ending in 0626. A copy of this account statement is
attached to this complaint as Exhibit A.

23. Upon information and belief, Exhibit A is a form account statement, generated by
computer, and with the information specific to Plaintiff inserted by computer.

24. Exhibit A states:

ACCOUNT SUMMARY PAYMENT INFORMATION _

~ account Number: | o= New Balance 564103
Previous Balance $640.05 Payment Due Date 03/28/17
Payment, Credits go.gg Minimum Payment Due $105.00
Purchases $0.00 Minimum Payment Warning: If you make only the minimum payment

each period, you will pay more In Interest and it will take you longer lo

Cash Advancas $0.00 pay off your balance. For example:
Balance Transfers $0.00
Fees Charged 30,00 -
Interest Ch +50.88 If you make no You will pay off the | And you will end up
plerest Charged additional charges using | balance shown on | paying an estimated
New Balance $641.08 this card and each this statement in total of...
..
Opening/Closing Date 02/04/17 - 03/03/17 month you pay abou
Credit Access Line 4500 Only the minimum 3 years 5659
Available Credit 50 payment
Cash Access Line $100 |t you would like information about credit counssling services, call
Available for Cash $0 1-BE6-TH7-2885,
Past Due Amount $20.00
Balance over the Credit Access Line 5141.03
Exhibit A.

25. Exhibit A states that, as of March 3, 2017, Plaintiff’s account ending in 0626 had
a “New Balance” of $641.03, with a “Past Due Amount” of $90.00, a “Payment Due Date” of

March 28, 2017, and a “Minimum Payment Due” of $105.00.
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26.  On or about March 10, 2017 NCI mailed Plaintiff a debt collection letter
regarding the same alleged debt, allegedly owed to Chase. A copy of this account statement is
attached to this complaint as Exhibit B.

27. Exhibit B was the first letter that NCI sent to Plaintiff with respect to Plaintiff’s
alleged Chase debt.

28. Upon information and belief, Exhibit B is a form letter, generated by computer,
and with the information specific to Plaintiff inserted by computer.

29. Exhibit B states:

Your gutstanding balance with the above referenced creditor is past due and has been referred to Mationwide Credit, Inc.
for collection. The Account Balance as of the date of this letter is shown above. The following options are available to
help you resalve this account:

Exhibit B.

30. Exhibit B also states:

Current Creditor: CHASE BANK USA, NA.
Account Number: JOCRXCHXOOKD626
Account Balance: $641.03
Date: 03/10/2017

Exhibit B.

31. Exhibit B, thus, represents that the debt had been accelerated and the full balance
IS now due.

32.  NCI’s representation in Exhibit B that Plaintiff’s account ending in 0626 had an
“outstanding balance” of $641.03 that was “past due” is false and misleading.

33. According to Exhibit A, as of March 10, 2017, when NCI mailed Exhibit B,
Plaintiff’s account ending in 0626 had a “Past Due Amount” of $90.00, a “Minimum Payment

Due” of $105.00, and a “Payment Due Date” of March 28, 2017. Exhibit A.
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of the date of Exhibit B. Exhibit B states that $641.03 is “past due,” but Exhibit A states that

34.  The unsophisticated consumer cannot determine how much debt is actually due as

only $90.00 is “past due” and seeks only a minimum payment of $105.00.

balance is now “due.” See Machnik v. RSI Enters., 2017 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 160772, at *6 (E.D.

Wis. Sept. 29, 2017) (“In the context of a debt, ‘owing’ an amount is distinguishable from the

35.  NCI’s letter states or implies that the debt has been accelerated and the entire

amount ‘due.’”).

provide consumers with notice of the consumer’s right to cure default, prior to accelerating the

36.  “Merchants,” which term applies to NCI and Chase, are statutorily required to

loan. Wis. Stat. §§ 425.104 and 425.105 read as follows:

425.104 Notice of customer’s right to cure default.

(1)

(@)

A merchant who believes that a customer is in default may give the customer
written notice of the alleged default and, if applicable, of the customer’s right to
cure any such default (s. 425.105).

Any notice given under this section shall contain . . . a statement of the nature of
the alleged default and a clear statement of the total payment, including an
itemization of any delinquency charges, or other performance necessary to cure
the alleged default, [and] the exact date by which the amount must be paid or
performance tendered . . . .

425.105 Cure of default.

(1)

)

A merchant may not accelerate the maturity of a consumer credit transaction,
commence any action except as provided in s. 425.205(6) or demand or take
possession of collateral or goods subject to a consumer lease other than by
accepting a voluntary surrender thereof (s. 425.204), unless the merchant believes
the customer to be in default (s. 425.103), and then only upon the expiration of 15
days after a notice is given pursuant to s. 425.104 if the customer has the right to
cure under this section.

Except as provided in subs. (3) and (3m), for 15 days after such notice is given, a
customer may cure a default under a consumer credit transaction by tendering the

amount of all unpaid installments due at the time of the tender, without
acceleration, plus any unpaid delinquency or deferral charges, and by tendering
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performance necessary to cure any default other than nonpayment of amounts

due. The act of curing a default restores to the customer the customer’s rights

under the agreement as though no default had occurred.

37. Upon information and belief, at the time NCI sent Exhibit B to Plaintiff, Chase

had not sent Plaintiff a notice of Plaintiff’s right to cure an alleged default regarding the account

referenced in Exhibits A and B.

38.  Exhibit B states only that the “account balance” is “$641.03.” But having failed to
send notice of the consumer’s right to cure, Defendants were prohibited by law from accelerating
the debt. Exhibit B grossly overstates the actual amount of the debt. Machnik, 2017 U.S. Dist.
LEXIS 160772, at *6.

39.  NCI and Chase both represented the amount of the debt in a way that was
confusing to the unsophisticated consumer and/or misrepresented the amount of the debt.

40. Upon information and belief, NCI and Chase work in a scripted process to collect
Chase debts such as Plaintiff’s.

41.  Upon information and belief, NCI is fully aware of the contents and
representations in Exhibit A.

42.  Upon information and belief, Chase is fully aware of the contents and
representations in Exhibit B.

43.  Upon information and belief, NCI is fully aware that Chase sends Exhibit A to
consumers approximately seven days before NCI mails a letter in the form of Exhibit B.

44, Upon information and belief, NCI is fully aware that its letter is sent during
account billing cycles wherein Chase has sent a statement to consumers seeking a “minimum
payment” and not representing that the entire balance is due.

45.  Plaintiff was confused by Exhibits A and B.

7
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46.  The unsophisticated consumer would be confused by Exhibits A and B.

47. Plaintiff had to spend time and money investigating Exhibits A and B.

48.  Plaintiff had to take time to obtain and meet with counsel, including traveling to
counsel’s office by car and its related expenses, including but not limited to the cost of gasoline

and mileage, to advise Plaintiff on the consequences of Exhibits A and B.

The FDCPA

49.  The FDCPA states that its purpose, in part, is “to eliminate abusive debt
collection practices by debt collectors.” 15 U.S.C. § 1692(e). It is designed to protect
consumers from unscrupulous collectors, whether or not there is a valid debt. Mace v. Van Ru
Credit Corp., 109 F.3d 338 (7th Cir. 1997); Baker v. G.C. Services Corp., 677 F.2d 775, 777 (9th
Cir. 1982); McCartney v. First City Bank, 970 F.2d 45, 47 (5th Cir. 1992). The FDCPA broadly
prohibits unfair or unconscionable collection methods; conduct which harasses, oppresses or
abuses any debtor; and any false, deceptive or misleading statements in connection with the
collection of a debt; it also requires debt collectors to give debtors certain information. 15
U.S.C. §§ 1692d, 1692¢, 1692f and 1692g.

50.  The Seventh Circuit has held that whether a debt collector’s conduct violates the
FDCPA should be judged from the standpoint of an “unsophisticated consumer.” Avila v.
Rubin, 84 F.3d 222, 227 (7th Cir. 1996); Gammon v. GC Services, LP, 27 F.3d 1254, 1257 (7th
Cir. 1994). The standard is an objective one—whether the plaintiffs or any class members were
misled is not an element of a cause of action. Bartlett v. Heibl, 128 F.3d 497, 499 (7th Cir.
1997). “The question is not whether these plaintiffs were deceived or misled, but rather
whether an unsophisticated consumer would have been misled.” Beattie v. D.M. Collections

Inc., 754 F. Supp. 383, 392 (D. Del. 1991).
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51.  Because it is part of the Consumer Credit Protection Act, 15 U.S.C. 8§ 1601 et
seq., the FDCPA should be liberally construed in favor of the consumer to effectuate its

purposes. Cirkot v. Diversified Fin. Services, Inc., 839 F. Supp. 941, 944 (D. Conn. 1993).

The [Consumer Credit Protection] Act is remedial in nature, designed to
remedy what Congressional hearings revealed to be unscrupulous and
predatory creditor practices throughout the nation. Since the statute is
remedial in nature, its terms must be construed in liberal fashion if the
underlying Congressional purpose is to be effectuated.

N.C. Freed Co. v. Board of Governors, 473 F.2d 1210, 1214 (2d Cir. 1973).

52.  Statutory damages are recoverable for violations, whether or not the consumer
proves actual damages. Baker, 677 F.2d at 780-1; Woolfolk v. Van Ru Credit Corp., 783 F. Supp.
724, 727 and n. 3 (D. Conn. 1990); Riveria v. MAB Collections, Inc., 682 F. Supp. 174, 177
(W.D.N.Y. 1988); Kuhn v. Account Control Tech., 865 F. Supp. 1443, 1450 (D. Nev. 1994); In
re Scrimpsher, 17 B.R. 999, 1016-7 (Bankr. N.D.N.Y. 1982); In re Littles, 90 B.R. 669, 680
(Bankr. E.D. Pa. 1988), aff 'd as modified sub nom. Crossley v. Lieberman, 90 B.R. 682 (E.D. Pa.
1988), aff 'd, 868 F.2d 566 (3d Cir. 1989).

53.  The FDCPA creates substantive rights for consumers; violations cause injury to
consumers, and such injuries are concrete and particularized. Pogorzelski v. Patenaude & Felix
APC, No. 16-C-1330, 2017 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 89678 *9 (E.D. Wis. June 12, 2017) (“A plaintiff
who receives misinformation from a debt collector has suffered the type of injury the FDCPA
was intended to protect against.”); Spuhler v. State Collection Servs., No. 16-CV-1149, 2017
U.S. Dist. LEXIS 177631 (E.D. Wis. Oct. 26, 2017) (“As in Pogorzelski, the Spuhlers’
allegations that the debt collection letters sent by State Collection contained false representations
of the character, amount, or legal status of a debt in violation of their rights under the FDCPA
sufficiently pleads a concrete injury-in-fact for purposes of standing.”); Bock v. Pressler &

Pressler, LLP, No. 11-7593, 2017 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 81058 *21 (D.N.J. May 25, 2017) (“through
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[s]ection 1692e of the FDCPA, Congress established ‘an enforceable right to truthful information
concerning’ debt collection practices, a decision that ‘was undoubtedly influenced by
congressional awareness that the intentional provision of misinformation’ related to such
practices, ‘contribute[s] to the number of personal bankruptcies, to marital instability, to the loss
of jobs, and to invasions of individual privacy,”); Quinn v. Specialized Loan Servicing, LLC, No.
16 C 2021, 2016 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 107299 *8-13 (N.D. Ill. Aug. 11, 2016) (rejecting challenge
to Plaintiff’s standing based upon alleged FDCPA statutory violation); Lane v. Bayview Loan
Servicing, LLC, No. 15 C 10446, 2016 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 89258 *9-10 (N.D. Ill. July 11, 2016)
(“When a federal statute is violated, and especially when Congress has created a cause of action
for its violation, by definition Congress has created a legally protected interest that it deems
important enough for a lawsuit.”); Church v. Accretive Health, Inc., No. 15-15708, 2016 U.S.
App. LEXIS 12414 *7-11 (11th Cir. July 6, 2016) (same); see also Mogg v. Jacobs, No. 15-CV-
1142-JPG-DGW, 2016 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 33229, 2016 WL 1029396, at *5 (S.D. Ill. Mar. 15,
2016) (“Congress does have the power to enact statutes creating legal rights, the invasion of
which creates standing, even though no injury would exist without the statute,” (quoting Sterk v.
Redbox Automated Retail, LLC, 770 F.3d 618, 623 (7th Cir. 2014)). For this reason, and to
encourage consumers to bring FDCPA actions, Congress authorized an award of statutory
damages for violations. 15 U.S.C. 8 1692k(a).

54, Moreover, Congress has explicitly described the FDCPA as regulating “abusive
practices” in debt collection. 15 U.S.C. 88 1692(a) — 1692(e). Any person who receives a debt
collection letter containing a violation of the FDCPA is a victim of abusive practices. See 15
U.S.C. 88 1692(e) (“It is the purpose of this subchapter to eliminate abusive debt collection

practices by debt collectors, to insure that those debt collectors who refrain from using abusive
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debt collection practices are not competitively disadvantaged, and to promote consistent State
action to protect consumers against debt collection abuses™).

55. 15 U.S.C. 8 1692e prohibits “any false, deceptive, or misleading representation or
means in connection with the collection of any debt.”

56. 15 U.S.C. 8 1692¢(2)(A) specifically prohibits: “The false representation of — the
character, amount, or legal status of any debt.”

57. 15 U.S.C. 8 1692¢(10) specifically prohibits the “use of any false representation
or deceptive means to collect or attempt to collect any debt.”

58. 15 U.S.C. 8 1692f generally prohibits a debt collector from using “unfair or
unconscionable means to collect or attempt to collect any debt.”

59. 15 U.S.C. § 1692f(1) specifically prohibits the “collection of any amount
(including any interest, fee, charge, or expense incidental to the principal obligation) unless such
amount is expressly authorized by the agreement creating the debt or permitted by law.”

60. 15U.S.C. § 1692¢g(a) states:
a) Notice of debt; contents
Within five days after the initial communication with a consumer in
connection with the collection of any debt, a debt collector shall, unless the
following information is contained in the initial communication or the consumer
has paid the debt, send the consumer a written notice containing—
(1) the amount of the debt;
The WCA
61.  The Wisconsin Consumer Act (“WCA”) was enacted to protect consumers against

unfair, deceptive, and unconscionable business practices and to encourage development of fair

and economically sound practices in consumer transactions. Wis. Stat. § 421.102(2).
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62.  The Wisconsin Supreme Court has favorably cited authority finding that the
WCA “goes further to protect consumer interests than any other such legislation in the country,”
and is “probably the most sweeping consumer credit legislation yet enacted in any state.” Kett v.
Community Credit Plan, Inc.,, 228 Wis. 2d 1, 18 n.15, 596 N.W.2d 786 (1999) (citations
omitted).

63.  To further these goals, the Act’s protections must be “liberally construed and
applied.” Wis. Stat. § 421.102(1); see also § 425.301.

64.  “The basic purpose of the remedies set forth in Chapter 425, Stats., is to induce
compliance with the WCA and thereby promote its underlying objectives.” First Wisconsin
Nat’l Bank v. Nicolaou, 113 Wis. 2d 524, 533, 335 N.W.2d 390 (1983). Thus, private actions
under the WCA are designed to both benefit consumers whose rights have been violated and also
competitors of the violators, whose competitive advantage should not be diminished because of
their compliance with the law.

65.  To carry out this intent, the WCA provides Wisconsin consumers with an array of
protections and legal remedies. The Act contains significant and sweeping restrictions on the
activities of those attempting to collect debts. See Wis. Stats. § 427.104.

66.  The Act limits the amounts and types of additional fees that may be charged to
consumers in conjunction with transactions. Wis. Stats. § 422.202(1). The Act also provides
injured consumers with causes of action for class-wide statutory and actual damages and
injunctive remedies against defendants on behalf of all customers who suffer similar injuries. See
Wis. Stats. 88§ 426.110(1); § 426.110(4)(e). Finally, “a customer may not waive or agree to
forego rights or benefits under [the Act].” Wis. Stat. § 421.106(1).

67.  Consumers’ WCA claims under Wis. Stat. 8§ 427.104(1) are analyzed using the

same methods as claims under the FDCPA. Indeed, the WCA itself requires that the court
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analyze the WCA “in accordance with the policies underlying a federal consumer credit
protection act,” including the FDCPA. Wis. Stat. § 421.102(1).

68.  Further, the Wisconsin Supreme Court has held that WCA claims relating to debt
collection are to be analyzed under the “unsophisticated consumer” standard. Brunton v. Nuvell
Credit Corp., 785 N.W.2d 302, 314-15. In Brunton, the Wisconsin Supreme Court explicitly
adopted and followed the “unsophisticated consumer” standard, citing and discussing Gammon
v. GC Servs. Ltd. P’ship, 27 F.3d 1254, 1257 (7th Cir. 1994). Id.

69.  Wis. Stat. 8 427.104(1)(g) states that a debt collector may not: “Communicate
with the customer . . . in such a manner as can reasonably be expected to threaten or harass the
customer.”

70.  Wis. Stat. 8§ 427.104(1)(h) states that a debt collector may not: “Engage in other
conduct which can reasonably be expected to threaten or harass the customer . .. .”

71.  Wis. Stat. § 427.104(1)(j) states that a debt collector may not: “Claim, or attempt
or threaten to enforce a right with knowledge or reason to know that the right does not exist.”

72.  Wis. Stat. § 427.104(1)(L) states that a debt collector may not: “Threaten action
against the customer unless like action is taken in regular course or is intended with respect to

the particular debt.”

COUNT I — FDCPA

73.  Plaintiff incorporates by reference as if fully set forth herein the allegations
contained in the preceding paragraphs of this Complaint.

74. Count | is brought against Defendant NCI.

75. Prior to sending Exhibit B, NCI was aware that Chase had sent Plaintiff an
account statement stating Plaintiff’s account had a “Past Due Amount” of $90.00, a “Minimum

Payment Due” of $105.00, and a “Payment Due Date” of March 28, 2017.
13
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76. NCI represented to Plaintiff that Plaintiff’s Chase account had been accelerated
by seeking to collect the entire balance of $641.03 and not just the amount actually due.

77.  NCI misrepresented the amount, character, and legal status of the debt it was
collecting.

78.  NCI’s attempts to collect the entire balance of class members’ Chase accounts
were false, misleading and confusing representations, and were also an unfair and
unconscionable means of collecting a debt.

79. NCI’s conduct violates 15 U.S.C. 88 1692e, 1692e(2)(A), 1692e(10), 1692(f),
1692f(1), and 1692g(a)(1).

COUNT Il -- WCA

80.  Plaintiff incorporates by reference as if fully set forth herein the allegations
contained in the preceding paragraphs of this Complaint.

81.  Count Il is brought against both Defendants.

82. In Exhibit A, Chase represented to Plaintiff that her account had a “Past Due
Amount” of $90.00, a “Minimum Payment Due” of $105.00, and a “Payment Due Date” of
March 28, 2017.

83. Nonetheless, Chase contracted with NCI to send Exhibit B, which stated the
whole of Plaintiff’s account was past due on March 10, 2017 and attempted to collect the entire
balance as though it had been properly accelerated.

84. In fact, when NCI sent Exhibit B, NCI knew that Chase had just sent Plaintiff an
account statement representing that her Chase debt had not been accelerated.

85. NCI’s and Chase’s joint conduct violates the Wisconsin Consumer Act, Wis. Stat.

§§ 427.104(1)(g), 427.104(1)(h), 427.104(1)(j), and 427.104(1)(L).
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CLASS ALLEGATIONS

86.  Plaintiff brings this action on behalf of a Class, consisting of (a) all natural
persons in the State of Wisconsin (b) who were sent an account statement by Chase in the form
of Exhibit A, (c) and subsequently were sent a letter in the form of Exhibit B, (d) for an alleged
debt incurred for personal, family or household purposes, (e) between February 2, 2017 and
February 2, 2018, inclusive, (f) that were not returned by the postal service.

87. The Class is so numerous that joinder is impracticable. Upon information and
belief, there are more than 50 members of the Class.

88. There are questions of law and fact common to the members of the class, which
common questions predominate over any questions that affect only individual class members.

The predominant common question is whether Exhibits A and B violate the FDCPA and/or the

WCA.

89.  Plaintiff’s claims are typical of the claims of the Class members. All are based on
the same factual and legal theories.

90. Plaintiff will fairly and adequately represent the interests of the Class members.
Plaintiff has retained counsel experienced in consumer credit and debt collection abuse cases.

91. A class action is superior to other alternative methods of adjudicating this dispute.

Individual cases are not economically feasible.

JURY DEMAND

92.  Plaintiff hereby demands a trial by jury.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff requests that the Court enter judgment in favor of Plaintiff and

the Class and against Defendants for:
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(@)
(b)
(©)
(d)

actual damages;

statutory damages;

attorneys’ fees, litigation expenses and costs of suit; and

such other or further relief as the Court deems proper.

Dated: February 2, 2018

By:
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ADEMI & O’REILLY, LLP

/s Mark A. Eldridge

John D. Blythin (SBN 1046105)
Mark A. Eldridge (SBN 1089944)
Jesse Fruchter (SBN 1097673)
Ben J. Slatky (SBN 1106892)
3620 East Layton Avenue
Cudahy, W1 53110

(414) 482-8000

(414) 482-8001 (fax)
jblythin@ademilaw.com
meldridge@ademilaw.com
jfruchter@ademilaw.com
bslatky@ademilaw.com
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ul.lnlll|rll""ll||||l|"nllull||hllllﬂlﬂ“hh“pl"|||'|||

m [ Manage your account online: {at) CustomerService: §38 Mobite: Download the
l H AS E wvew chase.com/amazon 1-888-247-4080 1 Chase Mobile® app today

.
&
ACCOUNT SUMMARY PAYMENT INFORMATION _
Account Number: _osze New Balance $641.03
Previous Balance £640.05 P{iylmenl Due Date 03/28/17
Payment, Credits go.00 Minimum Payment Due $105.00
Purchases $0.00 Minimum Payment Warning: If you make only the minimum payment

each period, you wil pay more in interest and it will take you longer lo

Cash Advances $0.00

off your bal . For A
Balance Transfers $0.00 pay ol ance. For example
Fees Charged £0.00
Interest Chi +$0.68 If you make no You will pay off the | And you will end up
nieresl Charged S0 additional charges uging | balance shownon | paying an estimated
New Balance 5841.03 this card and each this statement in total of...
Opening/Closing Date 02/04/17 - DNOV17 month you pay. . about..
Credit Access Line $500 Only the minimum 3 years 5659
Available Credit 0] payment
Cash Access Line $100 it you would like information about credit counseling services, call
Ayailable for Cash $0  1-866-797-2885,
Past Due Amount $90.00
Balance over the Credit Access Line $141.03

YOUR ACCOUNT MESSAGES

You have one of more balance(s) with APR explrahon dates, as shown in the Interest Charge section. These APRs will conlinue through
the expiration dates shown in the Interest Charges section.

You are over your credit line/credit access line by $141.03. You can pay down your batance faster by Including this amount with your
payment.

Your account is closed and ne longer available for use.

. POINTS SUMMARY

Previous points balance

+ 3% Back on Amazon.com purchases
+ 2% Back at gas stations

+ 2% Back at restaurants

+ 2% Back at drugstores

+ 1% Back on all other purchases

= Tolal points available for redemplicn

"% Back rewards" are the rewards you earn under the
program. % Back rewards are tracked as points and
each §1 in % Back rewards eamed is equal to 100 pts.
You can redeem your polnts toward millions of items
when you shop at Amazon.com or for cash back, gift
cards and travel at chase.com/amazonrewards.

COO0OO0ODOO0

To see if your card earns 5% Back or 3% Back on Amazon.com purchases, sign into an Amazon.com account where your card is loaded,
visit "Your Account” page, click the “Manage Payment Options® page under the *Payment Methods* section, and expand the details of your
credit card. If that Amazon.com account has eligible Prime membership, and your card could be sarning 5% Back on Amazon.com
purchases, you'l see how to siart eaming 5% Back on Amazon.com purchases, You ¢an go to Chase.com to see whether you eamed 5%
Back or 3% Back an previous Amazon.com purchases.

Have a question about what you ordered at Amazon.com? Sign in to your Amazeon.com account and go to "Your Account,” then “Your
Orders" to view your recent orders. For questions about purchases or retumnas, call Amazon Customer Service at 1-866-216-1072,

. ACCOUNT ACTIVITY
Date of
Transaction Merchant Name or Transaction Description $ Amount
INTEREST CHARGED
03/03 PURCHASE INTEREST CHARGE

TOTAL INERESE 2 1B EEVD0191 Filed 02/02/18 Pagé°2sof5 Document 1-1
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Address Change Raquest

Ploase provide information below only if the address inlarmation on front is incorrect.

Strest Address:

City:

Stale: zip:

*Home Phone:

E-mail Address:

*Work Phone: —.— —

“When you give us your mobile phone number, we have your permission o contact you at that number about alf
your Chage or J.P. Morgan accounts. Your consent allows us and companies warking oh our behalf to use text
messaging, artificial or prerecorded voice messages and automatic disling technology for mformational and

contact us anylime to change these preferences.

account service calis, but not for telemarketing or sales calls, Message and data rates may apply. You may

Te contact us regarding your account:

Call Ci :

@ l& us. 1-B88-247-4080 ? > "@
ro o aoe;  Sendinquiriesto: Mall Payments to: Vish Our Wabsita:
Pay by phone 1-800-436-7958 P.0. Box 15298 P.O. Box 94014 wrw chase.com'a)

Outside U 5. call eollect
1-302-694-6200

Wilmingion, DE 18850-5268 Palatine, IL 60094-4014

Intarmadion Abert Your Account

Lroditing of Payments: You may make peymants by any of 1he options fsied below,
The amount of your payment should be at least your minimam paymen] dus. payabis
tn L1.5. dellars and drewn or payable thropgh a LS. financial mstitution of the DS,
branzh of 3 $irelpn dimanclal stBuloa. You can pay down balances fester by paying
mare than the minlimum paymen of the la unpaid bataoce on youe accouny.

You mey make paymants by regular U.5. mad. Stnd your payman Lo the Paymants
akiesy showm on this sistement, Your paymants by maR st comply with the
Irsltictions on this slatemend, Do nod send cash Wrlle your Accourt number on
yourr check o morgy ordst. Pryments mest be accompaniad by e paymant cougon
im 1he envelope provided with our addvess visible through the ervelope windew, the
anvelgph cannot eantain more than ore payment or eoupon; and there can be no
stapies, paper clips, tape or correspondence inchuded wath your paymant. f your
payment |3 in accordance with our gayment mstructions and ks made available 1o v
on any iy by 5:00 p.m. iocat fiee ol our Payments address on 117 slalement, we wit
creclit St paymen: 1o your Aceoved as of hat cay. 1§ your payman |z in accoedance
with cur payment instrictians, but is made avallable ¥o us after 3:00 p.m. lnca! time
at tha Paymezs address on this statement. we will credit it to vour Accoun as of
the next calondar day.

You ey make payments electronicay thiough o webshe oe by ohe of o above
fisted cUstomer sarvice telaphone numbers. f we receive your completed payman
faqLesl Irough one of these channeks by & p.m. Eastem Time, we will credlt yoar
paymer as of that tay. 1 we receive wiur request aliee 8 p.m. Eastern Time, we will
crerh your payment a5 of the naxt calandsr day. I your soacity a iture date In yoor
request wa will credit your paymean as of (hat day,

For all pthar payments or or any paymant fype abova bor which you do not ioklaw our
paymor insinctions, crediting of yowr paymends may be delaved bor up to 5 days.

Rexonunt informalion Raparied to Cradll Bureaws: We may teport inlormation abow
your Attaunt 1o credk bursaus. Lale payments. missed payments or othey dafaulls.
On yous Accolnt mgy be reflected in your credtt report. 3f you think we have reported
inaccuratg informatken 1o & cradit bureal, you may write to us at he Inquiries aDdisss.
shown on this statement.

When yau g us your mokile phare number, we have your permizgion 1o certac!
you al thay number about all your Chese or J.P Margan accounts, Your consem
atkwe: ug fo uee texd arflicial or volee qes and
putdeate disking technology far misrmatioral and acomunt sarvice calls, but nat for
lelemarketing ot salas 2alls. [t may incligle corndect from companies werking on our
behalf to service your accounts. $essage and ctata rates may apy. You may contact
us anylime ta change thest preterences.

Nofles Abou! Eiscitonls Sheck Conyersion: ¥hen you my by check, you auiborize
Lt ehner {o use informatlon trom yow check to make & oie-thne elecironk: fund
trangfar trom your account af to piocess the paymenl s a check transaction. When
we LA inlormalion fram your cheek fo make on elsctrenic fund transter. Junds may
be withideawn from your acootn! as s0on 25 the same day we recalve your paymant,
and you will nof recelve your check back trom your financial Instfution. Call the
Customer Sarvice nuriber on this siatsmsnt [ you have ouestions abouk slactronic
check collaction ar 9o rot wvam yonr paymenis colected electronicaily.

Condifional Paymants: Ay pawrerd check or oiher hem of payment Ihat you send
U5 10r less than the full dakiree due thal i marked ~paid in full™ or contans a simikar
wolation, or iRkal you otherwise fender in full saliztaction of a disputed amound,
nust be sent to Card Services, 0. Box 15045, Wilmington, DE 10050-5040, We
raserve all our dghls reparding these rayments (e.9., B 1L Is detarmined there is no
valid dispute of I any suh chack is received ab any other addrass, we may accepl
the check and you will still cwe any remaming balance). We may refuse to accept
any slich payment by refurning # 1o you, nof ceshing it or destraying . All other
naymants that you make should be sert & the regular Payment address shows o
Lhig staternem.

Anewai Reameor! Notica: 1t your Accounl Agreemenl has an annual memtbership
fee. you are responsitde fas It avery year your Account is coen. We will add your
unnLizl membarablp fee to your mondhily biling statsmant once & yaar, whethsr of ned
Yol Usa your pocount. Your prnisl membership dee will be added to your purchase
balance and may incor Intgrest. Th 1} tee is nar unkess
you nethy us that you wish 1o close vour accaurnt wilhin 30 days or ona billing eyele
[wikchewer & less) after we provide 1he statsrent of which the annuat membecshtp
Ise I bided. Your peymend of the annual mesnbershiz fee does ool afiact our nights
10 close ypur Acepurt and to Jimit your right to maka transactions on your Account.
Ii youm Rezourd |s ¢losad by you of s, The annba memibership fee whl no longer be
Iriad to yiur Acsbunt.

Caisulntion of Balance Subject to Inkerest Rate: To figure your perlodic inferast
charges for szch bling cycle when a dally periodec rate(s) applies, we use the dady
halencq methad (including new transactions). To figure vour periedic Intarest crarges
1ot sachbilling cyclawhen 2 monthly pericdic rata{s) appliss, we use the avarage daity
Iralancs mathod {nchuding new K For an explanatinn ot alther method or
uesthons abaut a parlicular inkerest charge calculstion on your statement, please call
1Fs 2t the 10k Trea customer sarvice ghohe nusmber fisted above.

We calculate perodic interesd charges separately tor each teature (for example.
purchases, hatance transfers, cash advances or owerdrall advances). These
caleulations may combne diflerers catmpares with the same perlodic rales. Variahle
rates Wil vary with the markel kasad on the Prime Rate of such Indax described
In your Account Agreement. There s 3 transaciion fe2 lor each batanoe transier,

Case 2:18-cv-00191 Filed 02/02/18 Page 3 of 5 Document 1-1

cash advance, of check Iransaction I ihe amoum stated in your Accound Agreement.
There 15 2 loremin transaciwon fee of 3% of the U.S. dofler amount of any foreign
transaction for some acconls. Peace tee your Aceout Agresrment tor mlormation
abowt fhese faes.

We add \ransactions and fess 10 your daily hatance ro earber thon:

1] the date of the iransaclion - tor Pew puchases, batance fransters, overdratt
atlvances of cash athianoes.

2] the date the payse deposlts the chack — for news cazk advance checks ar
balance transter chechs,

J) the date ol 8 related i ranzaciion, the deie they are posted lo your ac£oing, o
the 1ast chy of the blillng cycle, whichever s may choost — lor tees

Hew 1o Avoid Paying Inierasi on Prmbasas: Your due dxte will be a minimim of
21 days attar the cinse of sach biilmg cycle. H veu pay yoor sccaunt in Sull sach billing
petipd by ihe date and tame diw, no imesest ks charged on new purchases manth
1o month. Abse, we will not impese interest chatpes on any portion of 3 purchise
balance you rapay whila Ihal balante Is subject Yo an mbaresi-troe period. Subject
1o any interest-free period ior new purchases, wa will begin charging irdarest from
the date a transaction [icwding @ny batanca transfer, cash advance or overdnail
avance), fee or Imlerest charge is adkded 1o vour daily balance unlil your accoum
ks pald i tud. Because we apphy paymeses In excess of your mendmum payrmem
1itsd ko highet ralt bakences, you may not be able fo avoR) imerest changes on otw
purchases M you have anodher batance at a tigher intevest mte unliess veu pay your
batanca in full each onth,

What % Do H Yeu Tuink You Flind A Mistake Oa Tour Statement

¥ you fhink Jhers i an evror on your statemend, wride 1o us on a separale sheet
at Customer Service, PO Box 15299 Wamingion, DE 1985(-5299, You may also
cantact us on Lhe web 31 chase.com,

In your lstiee, give us the Jallowing miermalion:
» Account irdormatian: Your nama and Account nurmiar.
« Doltar amout, The dollar anwurt o the suspecied arror

= Descripticn of Prablem: IF yow think there & an ctor on yout bill, deserbe
what vou balieva i wiong aad why you believe it is a migtake.

You musl eontact us within 60 days afisr the arror appeared on yeur statemant.

You mugd notily us of any potentlal errers bn wilting or on the web ot chase.com You
oy call us. but If you do we are ned requirsd 1o investigate any potentizl errors and
you may have to pay the amount In quastion.

White we mvestigale whether or nol there tas been ar arror, the folowing are true:

= We cannot try to callec! the amourd it qusstion, or repast vou as dafingient on
that amourd.

= The charge In quesiion may ramain on your Stalsmant. and ‘we may contiue
[o tharpe you ikerest on that amourt But, H we delermine thal we made a
mistake, you will not kiave to pay the amaird in question oc sy interest or
other tees related 1o that amount

» Wik you da not have ko pay iha aniount In questeon, you are fesponsible tor
1he remahigder of your iakance.

»We can apply any unpaid amoum ageiret vow credit Bmit.
Your Rights 1l You Am Dissallstied With Yowr CradH Card Purchases

IF you are dissatistied with the goads of services Thal ya have purchased with your
credit card, and you kava trled in good falth be cormaed the problem with the merchant,
you may heve the right nal to pay the remaming amaunl duz on the purchase.

To use this right, all of the IoHpwing mest be trog,

1. The purchase must have been made f vow homs state o within 100 miles
of your curmenl malling address, and the pwchase price musl have besn
mare than 850 (Note: Neither of these are necessary #f your puschase was
basad on an adveriisament we mailed te vou, oc if we gin tha company thal
S0kt you the poods or servkes. )

2. You rmst have sed you credit card for the purchiase, Purehases mate with
cash achvances From an ATM o7 with a chck thaf accessas your cred® card
Agcolnt do rof qudity.

3 You must nat yat nave Tilly padd for the purchess,

Hall of the critern above are enal and you are sttt desatistied with the purchase,
ctatdard 15 it writing at Custornar Sarvice, PG Box $5208 Wilmingion, DE 19850-5239
or onthe wab at chase,com.

Wit we mvestipate, the same ruies apply ta the dispged atmound as discirssed
atrove. Aftar we linksh our invastigation, we wil 1a8 yaw our decision A: thal pair, ¥
we Think you awe an 3moum an0 you do aol pay vie may reper you as delnguet,




s&. Manege your account onllne: ga Custome! Service: Il Mobile: Download the !
CI ' AS E m; Www.chase convamazon MU 1-888-247-4080 B! Chase Mobile® app loday

2017 Totals Year-to-Date
Totai lees charged in 2017 $0.00
Tota! interest charged in 2017 $3.16

Yaar-io-date totals do not reflect any fee or interest refunds
you may have received.

INTEREST CHARGES , ] i

Your Annual Percentage Rate (APR) is the annual interest rate on your account.
Annual Balance
Balance Type P tag Explrat Subject To interest
Rate (APR) Date* Interest Rate Charges

PURCHASES

Purchases 2.00% 04/03/22 $640.50 $0.98

Purchases 22.74%:{v) - -0- -0-
CASH ADVANCES

Cash Advances 2.00% 04/03/22 -0 -0-

Cash Advances 25.49% (v) - -0- -0 ,
BALANCE TRANSFERS

Balance Transfers 2.00% 04/03/22 -0- -0-

Balance Transters 2274% (¥) - -0- -G-
V)= Variable Rate 28 Days in Billing Period

Please see Information About Your Account section for the Caleulation of Balance Subject to Interest Rale, Annual Renewal Natice, How 1o
Avcid Interest on Purchases, and other important information, as applicable.

*If you change your payment due date, the date your promotional rate(s) ends also changes. Please be assured, the promotionai rate will
last for the time period promised in your offer.
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PG Box 10904 0N IDERTIAL ‘ /" ACCOUNT NUMBER. ‘ XOO00XOKNN0628__
Des Moines, 1A 50306-0354 01150 NCIID: 143
T LT e [

24-hour account access: Myatcount. neirm.com
_ o Change of address: Print New Address on Back

REMIT TO:

lIlll'llI'lI|ll||l|'||l|l|ltll|l|!'lII'III‘llllll!lllll'lllllllll
NATIONWIDE CREDIT, INC.
PO Box 14581
ool BbgfonsfUebana]fof b Tespe oy fongloget oty Des Moines IA 50306-3581

66711-108

Jennifer Gajewski

3660 E BARBARA CT APT 3

Oak Creek W! 53154-8012

* Plaase See Reverse Side of This Letter for (mpertant Consumer Information ***
Plaase Detacn and.Retum-this S:un-ie-tea-Enclosee Ervempessittryour Shask orkborey Greer - Make Sure ne "Remit it -Aocress-aposarsin the Wintlow -

 Current Creditor: CHASE BANK USA,NA.
Acoount Number: X}O0000000000626
Account Balance: $641.03

Nationwide Credit, Inc.

» PO Box 14581

m Des Moines, 1A 50306-3581 | :

Matiomwide Creeh, ima. Monday-Thursday 9AM to 10PM ET, Friday 9AM to 7PM ET ' Date: 03/10/2017 - B
1-866-428-0926 - -
myaccount.neirm.com

Prala - detyg ol Natonwids Credlt, inc, has &
- BUSINESS Batter Business Gusaau Rating of A+
BBY.

Your outstanding balance with the above referenced creditor is past due and has been referred to Nationwide Credit, Inc.
for collection. The Account Balance as of the date of this letter is shown above. The following options are available to
help you resolve this account:

. Sacure Online Portal: myaccount.ncirm.com is available 24 hours | Pay by Mail: Send your check or money arder lo
TIeBLOunLNCH. Cor a day to schedule payments, negofiate altematives, manage your | NATIONWIDE CREDIT, INC.
5 24-hour Accees account and more! PO Box 14581, Des Moaines, tA 50306-6314
= o Reference your NCI ID on your check or money order
Login using your NCI ID: 17069118143 and

3 Make or Password: Last four digits of your SSN

Reschedule

Payments Unless you notify this office within thirty {30) days after receiving this notice that you dispute the validity of the debt, or

any povtion thereof, this office will assume this debt is valid. If you notify this office in writing within thirty (30] days after
recelving this notice that the debt, or any portion thereof, is disputed, this office will obtain verification of the debt or

3 Change your
g Contaga you obtain a copy of a judgment against you and mail you a copy of such judgment or verification. Upon your written request
Information within thirty (30) days after receiving this notice, this office will provide you with the name and address of the original
creditor, if different from the current creditor.
% Telt Us How This demand for payment does not eliminate your right to dispute this debt or inquire for more information about this
You Would debt, as described in the previous paragraphs.
Like Us to We look forward to assisting you in resolving this account.
Contact You
Naticnwide Credit, Inc.
» And More...

This communication is an attempt to cellect a debt by a debt collector or consumer collection agency and any
information obtained will be used for that purpose.

Case 2:18-cv-00191 Filed 02/02/18 Page 2 of 3 Document 1-2
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NOTE CHANGES ONLY
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o [T ] wowepwone [ [ | ] [ T[] [T]]]

mwe [ [] = [JTTT]-LITT] | workewone | | | | [ ] | [ [[]]

THIS COMMUNICATION IS AN ATTEMPT TO COLLECT A DEBT BY A DEBT COLLECTOR OR CONSUMER
COLLECTION AGENCY AND ANY INFORMATION OBTAINED WILL BE USED FOR THAT PURPOSE.
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%.JS 44 (Rev. 12/07)

The JS 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replace nor supplement the filing and service of pleadings or other papers as required by law, except as provided

CIVIL COVER SHEET

by local rules of court. This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is required for the use of the Clerk of Court for the purpose of initiating

the civil docket sheet

(SEE INSTRUCTIONS ON THE REVERSE OF THE FORM )

Place an X in the appropriate Box: [J Green Bay Division (I Milwaukee Division
I. (a) PLAINTIFFS DEFENDANTS
JENNIFERGAJEWSKI NATIONWIDE CREDIT,INC., etal.
Milwaukee

(b) County of Residence of First Listed Plaintiff
(EXCEPT IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES)

(¢) Attorney’s (Firm Name, Address, and Telephone Number)

Ademi & O'Reilly, LLP, 3620E. LaytonAve., Cudahy WI 53110
(414)482-8000-Telephon¢414)482-8001-Facsimile

NOTE:

Attorneys (If Known)

County of Residence of First Listed Defendant

(IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES ONLY)

IN LAND CONDEMNATION CASES, USE THE LOCATION OF THE
LAND INVOLVED.

II. BASIS OF JURISDICTION

(Place an “X”

in One Box Only)

(For Diversity Cases Only)

III. CITIZENSHIP OF PRINCIPAL PARTIES(Place an “X” in One Box for Plaintiff

and One Box for Defendant)

D 1 U.S. Government 3 Federal Question PTF DEF PTF DEF
Plaintiff (U.S. Government Not a Party) Citizen of This State D 1 D 1 Incorporated or Principal Place D 4 D 4
of Business In This State
D 2 U.S. Government D 4 Diversity Citizen of Another State D 2 D 2 Incorporated and Principal Place D 5 D 5
Defendant f Busi In Another Stat
clendan (Indicate Citizenship of Parties in Item IIT) ob Busmess tn Another State
Citizen or Subject of a D 3 D 3 Foreign Nation D 6 D 6
Foreign Country
IV. NATURE OF SUIT (Place an “X” in One Box Only)
| CONTRACT TORTS FORFEITURE/PENALTY BANKRUPTCY OTHER STATUTES ]
D 110 Insurance PERSONAL INJURY PERSONAL INJURY D 610 Agriculture D 422 Appeal 28 USC 158 400 State Reapportionment
D 120 Marine 310 Airplane D 362 Personal Injury - D 620 Other Food & Drug D 423 Withdrawal 410 Antitrust

O 130 Miller Act

D 140 Negotiable Instrument

D 150 Recovery of Overpayment
& Enforcement of Judgment

O 151 Medicare Act

[0 152 Recovery of Defaulted
Student Loans
(Excl. Veterans)

D 153 Recovery of Overpayment
of Veteran’s Benefits

D 160 Stockholders” Suits

D 190 Other Contract

[0 195 Contract Product Liability

196 Franchise

O OO0 OO0 O O 04

315 Airplane Product
Liability

320 Assault, Libel &
Slander

330 Federal Employers’
Liability

340 Marine

345 Marine Product
Liability

350 Motor Vehicle

355 Motor Vehicle
Product Liability

360 Other Personal
Injury

Med. Malpractice
[0 365 Personal Injury -
Product Liability
D 368 Asbestos Personal
Injury Product
Liability
PERSONAL PROPERTY
O 370 Other Fraud
O 371 Truth in Lending
D 380 Other Personal
Property Damage
D 385 Property Damage
Product Liability

D 625 Drug Related Seizure
of Property 21 USC 881

] 630 Liquor Laws

] 640 R.R. & Truck

] 650 Airline Regs.

28 USC 157

PROPERTY RIGHTS

OoOoOoOoOon

] 820 Copyrights
[] 830 Patent

REAL PROPERTY

CIVIL RIGHTS

PRISONER PETITIONS

D 660 Occupational D 840 Trademark
Safety/Health
[ 690 Other
LABOR SOCIAL SECURITY
D 710 Fair Labor Standards D 861 HIA (1395ff)
Act ] 862 Black Lung (923)

D 720 Labor/Mgmt. Relations
D 730 Labor/Mgmt.Reporting
& Disclosure Act

] 740 Railway Labor Act

[J 863 DIWC/DIWW (405(g))
] 864 SSID Title X VI
] 865 RSI (405(g))

FEDERAL TAX SUITS

O OO0O00O00O0 O OOoOd™

430 Banks and Banking

450 Commerce

460 Deportation

470 Racketeer Influenced and
Corrupt Organizations

480 Consumer Credit

490 Cable/Sat TV

810 Selective Service

850 Securities/Commodities/
Exchange

875 Customer Challenge
12 USC 3410

890 Other Statutory Actions

891 Agricultural Acts

892 Economic Stabilization Act

D 210 Land Condemnation D 441 Voting D 510 Motions to Vacate D 790 Other Labor Litigation D 870 Taxes (U.S. Plaintiff 893 Environmental Matters
D 220 Foreclosure D 442 Employment Sentence D 791 Empl. Ret. Inc. or Defendant) 894 Energy Allocation Act
[ 230 Rent Lease & Ejectment  |[] 443 Housing/ Habeas Corpus: Security Act [] 871 IRS—Third Party 895 Freedom of Information
D 240 Torts to Land Accommodations j 530 General 26 USC 7609 Act
D 245 Tort Product Liability D 444 Welfare D 535 Death Penalty IMMIGRATION 900Appeal of Fee Determination
D 290 All Other Real Property D 445 Amer. w/Disabilities - j 540 Mandamus & Other D 462 Naturalization Application Under Equal Access
Employment D 550 Civil Rights D 463 Habeas Corpus - to Justice
D 446 Amer. w/Disabilities - D 555 Prison Condition Alien Detainee 0 950 Constitutionality of
Other D 465 Other Immigration State Statutes
D 440 Other Civil Rights Actions
V. ORIGIN (Place an “X” in One Box Only) Appeal to District
1 Original O 2 Removed from O 3 Remanded from O 4 Reinstatedor [ 5 Tranﬁfer(ri(;d f_rom O 6 Multidistrict [J 7 JMudg_e from
Proceeding State Court Appellate Court Reopened ?not er district Litigation agistrate
specify) Judgment

VI. CAUSE OF ACTION

15 U.S.C. 1692 et seq

Cite the U.S. Civil Statute under which you are filing (Do not cite jurisdictional statutes unless diversity):

Brief description of cause:
Violation of Fair Debt Collection Practices Act and Wisconsin Consumer Act

VII. REQUESTED IN CHECK IF THIS IS A CLASS ACTION DEMAND $ CHECK YES only if demanded in complaint:
COMPLAINT: UNDER F.R.C.P. 23 JURY DEMAND: Yes [No
VIII. RELATED CASE(S) _ .
IF ANY (See instructions): 1ypGE DOCKET NUMBER

DATE

February 2, 2018

SIGNATURE OF ATTORNEY OF RECORD

/sl Mark A. Eldridge

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR ATTORNEYS COMPLETING CIVIL COVER SHEET FORM JS 44

Authority For Civil Cover Sheet

The JS 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replaces nor supplements the filings and service of pleading or other papers as required
by law, except as provided by local rules of court. This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is required for the use
of'the Clerk of Court for the purpose of initiating the civil docket sheet. Consequently, a civil cover sheet is submitted to the Clerk of Court for each civil complaint
filed. The attorney filing a case should complete the form as follows:

I (a) Plaintiffs-Defendants. Enter names (last, first, middle initial) of plaintiff and defendant. Ifthe plaintiff or defendant is a government agency, use only
the full name or standard abbreviations. Ifthe plaintiff or defendant is an official within a government agency, identify first the agency and then the official, giving
both name and title.

(b) County of Residence. For each civil case filed, except U.S. plaintiff cases, enter the name of the county where the first listed plaintiff resides at the
time of filing. In U.S. plaintiff cases, enter the name of the county in which the first listed defendant resides at the time of filing. (NOTE: In land condemnation
cases, the county of residence of the “defendant” is the location of the tract of land involved.)

(c) Attorneys. Enter the firm name, address, telephone number, and attorney of record. If there are several attorneys, list them on an attachment, noting
in this section “(see attachment)”.

II. Jurisdiction. The basis of jurisdiction is set forth under Rule 8(a), F.R.C.P., which requires that jurisdictions be shown in pleadings. Place an “X” in one
of the boxes. If there is more than one basis of jurisdiction, precedence is given in the order shown below.

United States plaintiff. (1) Jurisdiction based on 28 U.S.C. 1345 and 1348. Suits by agencies and officers of the United States are included here.
United States defendant. (2) When the plaintiff is suing the United States, its officers or agencies, place an “X” in this box.

Federal question. (3) This refers to suits under 28 U.S.C. 1331, where jurisdiction arises under the Constitution of the United States, an amendment to the
Constitution, an act of Congress or a treaty of the United States. In cases where the U.S. is a party, the U.S. plaintiff or defendant code takes precedence, and box
1 or 2 should be marked.

Diversity of citizenship. (4) This refers to suits under 28 U.S.C. 1332, where parties are citizens of different states. When Box 4 is checked, the citizenship of
the different parties must be checked. (See Section III below; federal question actions take precedence over diversity cases.)

III.  Residence (citizenship) of Principal Parties. This section of the JS 44 is to be completed if diversity of citizenship was indicated above. Mark this section
for each principal party.

Iv. Nature of Suit. Place an “X” in the appropriate box. If the nature of suit cannot be determined, be sure the cause of action, in Section VI below, is
sufficient to enable the deputy clerk or the statistical clerks in the Administrative Office to determine the nature of suit. If the cause fits more than one nature of
suit, select the most definitive.

V. Origin. Place an “X” in one of the seven boxes.
Original Proceedings. (1) Cases which originate in the United States district courts.

Removed from State Court. (2) Proceedings initiated in state courts may be removed to the district courts under Title 28 U.S.C., Section 1441. When the petition
for removal is granted, check this box.

Remanded from Appellate Court. (3) Check this box for cases remanded to the district court for further action. Use the date of remand as the filing date.
Reinstated or Reopened. (4) Check this box for cases reinstated or reopened in the district court. Use the reopening date as the filing date.

Transferred from Another District. (5) For cases transferred under Title 28 U.S.C. Section 1404(a). Do not use this for within district transfers or multidistrict
litigation transfers.

Multidistrict Litigation. (6) Check this box when a multidistrict case is transferred into the district under authority of Title 28 U.S.C. Section 1407. When this
box is checked, do not check (5) above.

Appeal to District Judge from Magistrate Judgment. (7) Check this box for an appeal from a magistrate judge’s decision.

VI.  Cause of Action. Report the civil statute directly related to the cause of action and give a brief description of the cause. Do not cite jurisdictional statutes

unless diversity. Example: U.S. Civil Statute: 47 USC 553 ) )
Brief Description: Unauthorized reception of cable service

VII. Requested in Complaint. Class Action. Place an “X” in this box if you are filing a class action under Rule 23, F.R.Cv.P.
Demand. In this space enter the dollar amount (in thousands of dollars) being demanded or indicate other demand such as a preliminary injunction.
Jury Demand. Check the appropriate box to indicate whether or not a jury is being demanded.

VIII. Related Cases. This section of the JS 44 is used to reference related pending cases if any. If there are related pending cases, insert the docket numbers
and the corresponding judge names for such cases.

Date and Attorney Signature. Date and sign the civil cover sheet.
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AO 440 (Rev. 06/12) Summons in a Civil Action

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

for the
Eastern District of Wisconsin

JENNIFERGAJEWSKI
Plaintiff(s)

V. Civil Action No. 18-cv-191

NATIONWIDE CREDITINC. and
CHASEBANK USA N.A.

Defendant(s)

N/ N N N N N N N N N N

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

NATIONWIDE CREDITINC.

c/o CORPORATIONSERVICECOMPANY
8040EXCELSIORDRIVE, SUITE 400
MADISON , WI 53717

TO: (Defendant’s name and address)

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you receive it) — or 60 days if you are

the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ. P.
12(a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of the
Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or the plaintiff’s attorney, whose
name and address are: JohnD. Blythin

Ademi& O'Reilly, LLP

3620EastLaytonAvenue

Cudahy,WI 53110

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint.
You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

STEPHEN C. DRIES, CLERK OF COURT

Date:
Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk

Case 2:18-cv-00191 Filed 02/02/18 Page 1 of 2 Document 1-4



AO 440 (Rev. 06/12) Summons in a Civil Action (Page 2)

Civil Action No. 18-cv-191

PROOF OF SERVICE
(This section should not be filed with the court unless required by Fed. R. Civ. P. 4(1))

This summons and the attached complaint for (name of individual and title, if any):

were received by me on (date)

LI I personally served the summons and the attached complaint on the individual at (place):

0N (date) , or

[ T left the summons and the attached complaint at the individual’s residence or usual place of abode with (name)
, a person of suitable age and discretion who resides there,

on (date) , and mailed a copy to the individual’s last known address; or

1 1 served the summons and the attached complaint on (name of individual)

who is designated by law to accept service of process on behalf of (name of organization)

on (date) ; or
I I returned the summons unexecuted because ; or
[ Other (specify):
My fees are $ for travel and $ for services, for a total of $ 0.00

I declare under penalty of perjury that this information is true.

Date:

Server’s signature

Printed name and title

Server’s address

Additional information regarding attempted service, etc.:

I IETTR ' °2°/10 Pose 22 Documen!




AO 440 (Rev. 06/12) Summons in a Civil Action

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

for the
Eastern District of Wisconsin

JENNIFERGAJEWSKI
Plaintiff(s)

V. Civil Action No. 18-cv-191

NATIONWIDE CREDITINC. and
CHASEBANK USA N.A.

Defendant(s)

N/ N N N N N N N N N N

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

CHASEBANK USA N.A.
200White Clay CenterDrive
Newark,Delawarel9711.

TO: (Defendant’s name and address)

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you receive it) — or 60 days if you are

the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ. P.
12(a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of the
Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or the plaintiff’s attorney, whose
name and address are: JohnD. Blythin

Ademi& O'Reilly, LLP

3620EastLaytonAvenue

Cudahy,WI 53110

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint.
You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

STEPHEN C. DRIES, CLERK OF COURT

Date:
Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk
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AO 440 (Rev. 06/12) Summons in a Civil Action (Page 2)

Civil Action No. 18-cv-191

PROOF OF SERVICE
(This section should not be filed with the court unless required by Fed. R. Civ. P. 4(1))

This summons and the attached complaint for (name of individual and title, if any):

were received by me on (date)

LI I personally served the summons and the attached complaint on the individual at (place):

0N (date) , or

[ T left the summons and the attached complaint at the individual’s residence or usual place of abode with (name)
, a person of suitable age and discretion who resides there,

on (date) , and mailed a copy to the individual’s last known address; or

1 1 served the summons and the attached complaint on (name of individual)

who is designated by law to accept service of process on behalf of (name of organization)

on (date) ; or
I I returned the summons unexecuted because ; or
[ Other (specify):
My fees are $ for travel and $ for services, for a total of $ 0.00

I declare under penalty of perjury that this information is true.

Date:

Server’s signature

Printed name and title

Server’s address

Additional information regarding attempted service, etc.:

I IETTR ' °2°/10 Pose 22 Documen!
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This complaint is part of ClassAction.org's searchable class action lawsuit database and can be found in this
post: NCI, Chase Bank Named in Wisconsin Woman's Debt Collection Suit



https://www.classaction.org/news/nci-chase-bank-named-in-wisconsin-womans-debt-collection-suit
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